
Agenda for a meeting of the Shipley Area Committee to 
be held on Wednesday 16 March 2016 at 1800 in the 
Council Chamber at Bingley Town Hall
Members of the Committee – Councillors
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN
Heseltine Ross-Shaw H Hussain
Shaw Love
Barker
Davies
Ellis
Townend

Alternates:
Conservative Labour Green
Cooke Hinchcliffe Warnes
Eaton Greenwood
Pennington
M Pollard
D Smith
Whiteley

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer 

named at the foot of that agenda item.  
 Light refreshments will be provided for Members of the Committee only.
 Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in under 

paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if 

Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct 
of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be 
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's 
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and 
ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make 
spoken contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound 
recorded.

From: To:
City Solicitor 
Agenda Contact: Palbinder Sandhu
Phone: 01274 432269
E-Mail:  palbinder.sandhu@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



Ward
A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1. ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are attending the 
meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted members on matters to 
be considered at the meeting. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes apparent to the 
member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in discussion and voting 
unless the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an interest which the 
Member feels would call into question their compliance with the wider principles 
set out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the 
Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must not vote in 
decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, and must disclose at the 
meeting that this restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not disclosable 
pecuniary interests but which they consider should be made in the interest of 
clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council Standing Order 44.

3. MINUTES

Recommended – 

That the minutes of the meetings held on 27 January 2016 be signed as a correct 
record (previously circulated).  

4. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by contacting the 
person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports and background papers may be 
restricted.  



Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper should be made to 
the relevant Director or Assistant Director whose name is shown on the front page of the 
report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if you wish to appeal.  

(Palbinder Sandhu - 01274 432269)

5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is the responsibility 
of the Committee.  

Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in Room 112, City Hall, 
Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Monday 14 March 2016.

(Palbinder Sandhu - 01274 432269)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

6. PETITION REQUESTING ‘20MPH ZONE’ ON WELL Bingley Rural
HEADS AND A644 BRIGHOUSE ROAD ADJACENT Thornton & Allerton
TO KEELHAM PRIMARY SCHOOL, WELL HEADS

The Strategic Director of Regeneration will submit Document “AH” which considers an 
e-petition, the title of which requests the introduction of a ‘20mph zone’ on that section of 
Well Heads and A644 Brighouse Road running adjacent to Keelham Primary School. The 
petition goes on to express concern regarding traffic speeds within the vicinity of the 
school, and makes specific request for the introduction of a Home Zone.

The petition was presented to Full Council on 19 January 2016, where it was resolved 
that the petition be referred to the Bradford West and Shipley Area Committees for their 
consideration.

On 24 February 2016, and in accordance with the Full Council resolution of 19 January 
2016, a petitions report regarding the request for a 20mph zone on Well Heads was 
presented to the Bradford West Area Committee. 

Recommended – 

(1) That the contents of Document “AH” be noted and that any action resolved 
be reported to a future meeting of the Bradford West Area Committee 

(2) That the lead petitioner be informed accordingly.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
 (Simon D’Vali – 01274 432100)



7. 26 OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION Baildon
ORDER FOR PARKING RESTRICTIONS WITHIN BAILDON 
VILLAGE AND ITS SURROUNDING AREAS

The Strategic Director of Regeneration will submit Document “AI” which considers 26 
objections received from local residents/businesses to a Traffic Regulation Order to 
introduce parking restrictions in and around Baildon village.

Recommended – 

(1) That the proposed Baildon TRO (as shown within Drawing No. 
TGD/THN/102329/TRO-1B (attached as Appendix 1 to Document “AI”) be 
approved, sealed and implemented as formally advertised subject to the 
following amendments:

(a) The proposed single yellow line on Langley Lane be omitted or 
reduced in length; 

(b) The proposed 2 hours short-stay parking on Jenny Lane be omitted 
between Heather Road and Heygate Lane.

(2) That the objectors be advised accordingly.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
 (Simon D’Vali – 01274 432100)

8. OBJECTIONS TO ADVERTISED 20MPH ZONE     Wharfedale
(COMPRISING TEN ROUND TOP ROAD HUMPS) 
ON THE EXISTING 20MPH LENGTH OF MOOR ROAD, 
BURLEY WOODHEAD

The Strategic Director of Regeneration will submit Document “AJ” which seeks the 
decision of this Committee regarding objections received to the advertised 20mph zone 
(comprising ten round top road humps) on Moor Road, Burley Woodhead.

Recommended – 

(1) That the objections relating to the proposals as originally advertised and as 
shown within drawing No. TDG/THN/102345/CON-1B (attached as Appendix 2 
of Document “AJ”) be overruled and the revised proposals as shown on 
drawing No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of Document 
“AJ”) be approved and;

(2) That the proposed traffic calming scheme as shown on drawing 
No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of Document “AJ”) 
becomes an extension of the existing adjoining 20mph zone on Moor Road, 
Burley Woodhead (as outlined in Appendix 1 of Document “AJ”).

(3) That the lead petitioner and objectors be advised accordingly. 

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
 (Simon D’Vali – 01274 432100)



9. PETITION REQUESTING REMOVAL OF EXISTING TWO Bingley
HOUR SHORT-STAY ON-STREET PARKING ON 
CEDAR STREET, CROSSFLATTS

The Strategic Director of Regeneration will submit Document “AK” which considers the 
petitioners’ request to remove the exiting two hours short- stay on-street parking facilities 
from the existing Resident Only Persons Parking (ROPP) scheme on Cedar Street, 
Crossflatts.

Recommended – 

(1) That the concerns of the petitioners be noted and no further action be 
recommended on this matter at this moment in time, although the petitioners' 
request be reconsidered when an appropriate parking review is being 
undertaken.

(2) That the lead petitioner and signatories be advised accordingly.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
 (Simon D’Vali – 01274 432100)

10. OBJECTION TO PROPOSED SPEED LIMIT     Wharfedale
ORDER TO INTRODUCE A 20MPH ZONE ON A 
SECTION OF SUN LANE, BURLEY IN WHARFEDALE

The Strategic Director of Regeneration will submit Document “AL” which considers one 
objection received to the advertised proposal to introduce a 20mph zone on the existing 
one-way section of Sun Lane (between its junctions with Main Street and West View 
Road) in Burley in Wharfedale.

Recommended – 

(1) That the proposals (as outlined in Appendix 1 of Document “AL”) be 
approved, sealed and implemented as formally advertised.

(2) That the objector be informed accordingly.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
 (Simon D’Vali – 01274 432100)



11. HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE NON-CLASSIFIED ROADS        All Wards
AND SURFACE DRESSING ALLOCATION FOR SHIPLEY 
CONSTITUENCY- 2016/17

The Strategic Director of Regeneration will submit Document “AM” which provides 
information on the Capital Highway Maintenance funding element of the Local Transport 
Plan for 2016/17 and makes recommendations on the allocation for Non-Classified road 
resurfacing schemes and Surface Dressing sites in the Shipley constituency.

Recommended – 

That the proposed programme of works for 2016/17 as shown in Appendices 2 and 
3 of Document “AM” be approved.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
 (Andy Fisher – 01535 618297)

agenda 15-16\SAC16MarAg
THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 

Report of the Director of Regeneration to the meeting of  
the Shipley Area Committee to be held on 16th March 
2016. 
 

Subject:   

AH 
Petition requesting the introduction of a ‘20mph zone’ on that section of Well Heads 
and A644 Brighouse Road running adjacent to Keelham Primary School, Well 
Heads. 
 

Summary statement: 
This report considers an e-petition, the title of which requests the introduction of a 
‘20mph zone’ on that section of Well Heads and A644 Brighouse Road running 
adjacent to Keelham Primary School. The petition goes on to express concern 
regarding traffic speeds within the vicinity of the school, and makes  specific 
request for the introduction of a Home Zone. 
 
The petition was presented to Full Council on 19 January 2016, where it was 
resolved that the petition be referred to the Bradford West and Shipley Area 
Committees for their consideration. 
 
On 24 February 2016, and in accordance with the Full Council resolution of 19 
January 2016, a petitions report regarding the request for a 20mph zone on Well 
Heads was presented to the Bradford West Area Committee.  
 
It is recommended that: 
 

• This Committee notes the contents of this report and that any action resolved 
be reported to a future meeting of the Bradford West Area Committee. 

 
                                                                                           Ward 23 – Thornton & Allerton 
                                                                                           Ward 03 – Bingley Rural  
 

Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director 
(Regeneration) 

Portfolio:   
Housing, Planning and Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Simon D’Vali 
Phone: (01274) 432100 
E-mail: simon.dvali @bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment & Waste Management 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1/



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 2 

 
 
1.       SUMMARY 
 
1.1 A 348 signature e-petition has been received from people concerned with road 

safety within the immediate vicinity of Keelham Primary School, Keelham. The 
petitioners’ request is attached to this as report Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 The lead petitioner is a pupil of Keelham Primary School. 
 
1.3 The petition was presented to Full Council on 19 January 2016, where it was  
          resolved that the petition be referred to the Bradford West and Shipley Area  
          Committees for their consideration. 
 
1.4 On 24 February 2016, and in accordance with the Full Council resolution of 19  
          January 2016, a petitions report regarding the request for a 20mph zone on Well  
          Heads was presented to the Bradford West Area Committee. That Committee  
          resolved  : 
 

(1) That Shipley Area Committee be requested to look favourably upon this petition  
      and act to address the concerns raised, which are shared by the Bradford West   
      Area Committee, in particular, to have regard to the implementation of  a ‘20mph   
      zone’. 

 
(2) That Officers continue to pursue all options with a view to improving road safety  
      measures at that section of Well Heads and A644 Brighouse Road running  
      adjacent to Keelham Primary School, Well Heads. 

 
     (3) That, in addition to the lead petitioner being informed accordingly, he also be   
           formally praised for his community spirit and the arduous work undertaken to           
           bring this subject matter to the attention of the Council.  
 

1.5     This report seeks to fulfil the resolution of the Full Council meeting of 19 January   
          2016 referred to in section 1.3 of this report. 
 
 
 
2.        BACKGROUND 
 
2.1      The petitioners have expressed concern with the junction of Well Heads with  
           Brighouse Road, with the amount of parking on those roads fronting the school, and  
           with traffic speeds within the immediate vicinity of the school. The petitioners have  
           specifically requested the introduction of a 20mph zone on Well Heads and  
           Brighouse Road, with the petition also requesting the provision of a Home Zone. 
            
2.2       Local Members are aware of the petition.  
 
 
 
 

Page 2



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 3 

 
 
2.3       Keelham Primary School is located within Thornton & Allerton ward in the  
            Bradford West constituency. Those sections of Well Heads and Brighouse Road  
            immediately fronting the school (and including their junction) are located within  
            Bingley Rural ward within the Shipley constituency. The roads to which the petition  
            relates and ward boundaries are identified within Appendix 2 of this report. 
 
2.4      Both Well Heads and Brighouse Road form an important route for vehicles  
           travelling from Halifax to Bingley/Shipley (and vice versa). Well Heads and  
           Brighouse Road also provide an alternative route in those instances where A629  
           Halifax Road is closed to traffic. 
           
2.5     The respective width of Well Heads and Brighouse Road adjacent to the school is  
           7.7 and 8.25 metres. Both roads are subject to a 30mph speed limit and are bus  
           routes. 
 
2.6      The school has no off-street parking facilities, and staff tend to park on the opposite   
           side of  Well Heads to the school playground. There are ‘SCHOOL-KEEP-CLEAR’  
           waiting restrictions on the other side of Well Heads to where this parking occurs. 
             
2.7  The results of a speed and volumetric traffic survey carried out in January 2016 on  
          that section of  Well Heads  approaching  the school are tabulated below: 
 
 
 

Direction of Travel - Towards A644 Brighouse Road 
Survey Date Mean Average 

speed for the 24 
hour period 

85th percentile 
speed* for the 24 
hour period 
 

Total Volume for 
the 24 hour 
period 

Tuesday 26th 
January 2016 
 

31.7mph 38.5mph 2153 

Wednesday 
27th January 
2016 

31.0mph 38.0mph 2198 

Thursday 
28th January 
2016 

31.2mph 37.5mph 2303 

 
            *The speed at or below which 85% of vehicles are travelling 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 4 

 
 
 
 

Direction of Travel - Towards Thornton 
Survey Date Mean Average 

speed for the 24 
hour period 

85th percentile 
speed* for the 24 
hour period 
 

Total Volume for 
the 24 hour 
period 

Tuesday 26th  
January 2016 
 

34.3mph 40.4mph 2591 

Wednesday 
27th January 
2016 

30.0mph 38.7mph 2761 

Thursday 
28th January 
2016 

30.6mph 37.9mph 2179 

 
            *The speed at or below which 85% of vehicles are travelling 

 
           
 2.8    Analysis of the Council’s traffic collision database shows that for the five year  
          period ending 31st December 2015, no traffic collisions resulting in personal injury  
          occurred on that section of Well Heads or Brighouse Road within the vicinity of the  
          school. 
 
2.9     The Council has liaised closely with Keelham Primary School in previous years  
          regarding the school’s traffic concerns. In 2011/12, Well Heads was included within  
          this Committee’s list of traffic calming/management scheme candidates  
          considered annually for possible inclusion within its future programme of works. To  
          date, the site has not been included within its Capital Works Programme, but  
          remains on the list of scheme candidates for future consideration. 
 
 
 
 3.0     Previous Relevant Reports 
 
 3.1    At the Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee on  
         12 February 2013, it was resolved: 
 
         That Bradford West and/or Shipley Area Committee be asked to look at safety   
          issues of the use of HGV vehicles at the junction of Well Heads and Brighouse  
          Road at Keelham Primary School and that a junction management action plan be  
          developed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 5 

 
           As a result, officers carried out investigations into traffic conditions at this junction,  
           in particular HGV turning manoeuvres. The following findings were reported back to  
           the Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18  
           June 2013: 
 
          This junction [the junction of Well Heads with Brighouse Road] forms part of the  
          Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) access route to Omega Proteins. The footway  
          alongside Keelham Primary school, and particularly at the corner, is narrow. 
 
           The restricted width of the carriageway on Well Heads (some 7.7m) dictates that   
           HGV ‘s encroach onto footway at the corner adjacent to the school when turning left  
           into the A644 Brighouse Road. The carriageway on the latter is 8.25m wide. 
 
          There are some local parking restrictions, but parking is allowed on the frontage of   
          residential properties on Brighouse Road opposite the school. Four out of six of    
          these properties do not have alternative parking. 
 
           Evidence of HGV turning movements shows that it is likely that provision of a bell   
           bollard on the corner (in a position that would leave sufficient width for pedestrians)   
           or restoration of full kerb height here would create additional turning difficulties that   
           may well result in damage to either of both or these along with parked vehicles in  
           the locality. As such, officers would not support either of these measures without  
           modifications to the school boundary. 
 
          One option previously discussed (between the Shipley Area team and the School)         
          was to cut the corner off the school boundary wall to create a wider footway. This  
          option was discounted by the School due to the impact that this would have on an  
          historic well that is built into the wall. There are also land ownership issues [The   
          land forming the school’s curtilage belongs to Education and Schools]. 
 
           The use of the existing pedestrian link between Well Heads and Brighouse Road  
           (remaining within school ownership) for pupils and parents has been offered by the  
           school as one potential alternative option. At a recent meeting with the school head  
           it was concluded that this was the most practical solution. The school are to  
           promote this amongst parents. Pedestrian movements at other times are minimal. 
 
 
 
 4.       OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
   
4.1 In view of the physical constraints at the junction of Well Heads with Brighouse  
          Road (section 3.1 of this report refers), it is the professional opinion of officers that  
          there are no options for highway improvements to the junction that would not,  
          themselves, lead to other issues. The use of the path within the school’s grounds by  
          pupils and parents is considered the most practical method of minimising the  
          potential for conflict between HGVs and pedestrians at this location and hence  
          improve the safety at the junction. 
 
 

Page 5



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 6 

 
 
 
4.2 The e–petition makes specific reference to the introduction of a Home Zone. Home    
          Zones are an attempt to strike a balance between vehicular traffic and everyone  
          else who uses the street (eg. pedestrians, cyclists, business people and residents).  
          Some see Home Zones as a way of "reclaiming" local streets from a traditional  
          domination by cars. Others see it more modestly as a way of trying to restore the  
          safety and peace in neighbourhoods that are becoming overwhelmed with speeding  
          traffic. Home Zones work through the physical alteration of streets and roads in an  
          area - these alterations forcing motorists to drive with greater care and at lower  
          speeds.  

4.3 Whilst the concept of home zones is an interesting one, such zones tend to be 
introduced within residential estates and cul-de-sacs, rather than roads such 
as Well Heads which forms an arterial route between Bingley/Shipley and Halifax. 
As such, officers do not consider the home zone concept to be an appropriate one 
with regards to Well Heads. 

4.4      Having regard to the 85th percentile speeds recorded on Well Heads in January  
           2016 (section 2.7 of this report refers), Members may consider that the introduction  
           of a 20mph zone on that section of Well Heads and Brighouse Road running  
           adjacent to the school is appropriate, and officers would be supportive of this on the  
           basis of the speed survey results. A 20mph zone would cost approximately £20k  
           (this sum covering scheme design costs, consultation, legal fees, and physical  
           construction).  
 
 
5.       OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION 
 
5.1     This report has not been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
        
 
6.      OPTIONS 
 
6.1     Option1 – That this Committee notes the contents of this report and that any action  
         resolved be reported to a future meeting of the Bradford West Area  Committee  
         (Recommended) 
  
6.2    Option 2  – Members may prefer to take a course of action other than that indicated  
         in the above option or the recommendation, in which case they will receive  
         appropriate guidance from officers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 7 

 
7.      FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
7.1   The promotion of a widening scheme at the junction of Well Heads with Brighouse 

Road would be reliant upon the acquisition of 3rd party land. Any such scheme would 
also require the appropriate diversion of statutory undertakers’ equipment. The costs 
of such acquisition and equipment diversion works are unknown at this stage (and a 
budget to undertake any design work to ascertain these has not been identified). 
However, it is anticipated that the cumulative costs including design, processing and 
legal fees and works costs would be above the level of funding generally available to 
the Area Committee for traffic management measures. Furthermore, it has been 
acknowledged at a West Yorkshire level that there needs to be a re-focus on 
Casualty Reduction in order to meet the KSI reduction target within the Local 
Transport Plan. Therefore it has been determined (by the LTP Board and resolved by 
the Transport Committee) that the next 3 years Implementation Plan (2014-2017) will 
introduce an evidence-based approach to prioritise a significant proportion of the 
budget available for Traffic Management measures to address those sites where it is 
expected that highways improvements will improve safety and reduce casualties. 

 
  7.2  The funding split determined by WYCA is 70% for Casualty Reduction schemes and 
          30% for Locally Determined schemes, such as on-street parking management, 
          speeding or other community priorities (where there are perhaps perceived safety 
          issues rather than a history of recorded collisions).  
 
  7.3   Given that there has not been a history of recorded collisions resulting in injury at   
          this site,  neither junction improvement works nor a 20mph zone could  be prioritised  
          for an allocation of the 70% Casualty Reduction funding. Any of the works which the    
          petitioners’ have requested would therefore need to funded by either: 
 

• The 30% funding allocation designated for Locally Determined schemes; 

• The Council’s own reserves; or 

• An external funding body. 
 

           However, the revised funding criteria which are being applied by external funding  
           bodies (eg. Enhancement in GVA or carbon reduction) mean that it is unlikely that a  
           scheme could be developed which demonstrates such benefits in the short to  
           medium term. 
 
         
8.      RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
         The implementation of low cost measures such as a bell bollard or re-kerbing could 

potentially lead to alternative safety issues arising. Such measures may also give 
pedestrians a false perception of safety. 

 
 
9. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
         There are no specific issues arising from this report. 
 

Page 7



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 8 

 
10. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 
 
         In the event that a scheme were developed, due regard would be given to Section  
         149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 
 
10.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
         There are no sustainability implications 
 
 
10.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
         There is no impact on the Council’s own and the wider District’s carbon footprint and 

emissions from other greenhouse gases arising from this report. 
 
 
10.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
         There have been no recorded collisions resulting in injury on those sections of Well 

Heads and Brighouse Road fronting Keelham Primary School in the five year period 
ending 31st December 2015. 

 
 
10.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
         There are no human rights implications 
 
 
10.6 TRADE UNION 
 
         There are no trade union implications 
 
 
 
10.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
         Local Ward Members have not been consulted on this report. 
 
 
10.8 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
         None   
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 9 

 
11. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1  Option1 – That this Committee notes the contents of this report and that any action  
         resolved be reported to a future meeting of the Bradford West Area Committee  
         
11.2 That the lead petitioner be informed accordingly. 
 
 
12.     APPENDICES 
 
12.1  Appendix 1 – The petitioners request  
 
12.2  Appendix 2 – Location Plan identifying those sections of Well Heads and Brighouse  
         Road running adjacent to Keelham Primary School, and ward boundaries at this site.  
 
 
 
13.    BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
13.1 Reports to Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
         on 12 February 2013, 18 June 2014, and 3 December 2014. 
 
13.2 Report to the meeting of Shipley Area Committee on 19 March 2014 
 
13.3  Report to the meeting of the Bradford West Area Committee on 24 February 2016 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 10 

 

                           Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

 11 

                                                                                      Appendix 2 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report of the Strategic Director of Regeneration to the 
meeting of the Shipley Area Committee to be held on  
16 March 2016. 
 
Subject:   
 

 
 
26 objections have been received to a proposed Traffic Regulation Order to 
introduce parking restrictions within Baildon village and its surrounding areas.   
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report considers objections received from local residents/businesses to a 
Traffic Regulation Order to introduce parking restrictions in and around Baildon 
village. 
 
It is recommended that: 
 

• The proposed Baildon TRO (as shown within Drawing No. 
TGD/THN/102329/TRO-1B (attached as Appendix 1 to this report) be approved, 
sealed and implemented as formally advertised subject to the following 
amendments: 

•  
(a) - The proposed single yellow line on Langley Lane be omitted or reduced in 

length;  
 

(b) - The proposed 2 hours short-stay parking on Jenny Lane be omitted between 
Heather Road and Heygate Lane.  

                                                                              
• The objectors be advised accordingly. 

 
 

                                                                                                     Ward 1 (Baildon) 
 

 
Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director (Regeneration) 

Portfolio:   
 
Housing, Planning and Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Simon D’Vali 
Phone: (01274) 432100 
E-mail: simon.dvali@bradford.gov.uk 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environmental and Waste Management 

 

AI 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2/



 2 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Consideration of objections received from local residents and other interested road 

user groups regarding the proposed Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to introduce 
parking restrictions in Baildon village and its surrounding areas. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The lack of sufficient on-street parking in Baildon village has been an issue for 

many years. Numerous concerns have been expressed by local businesses and 
residents regarding the problem of on-street parking facilities within the village for 
shoppers and residents alike. 

 
2.2 The proposed short-stay parking restrictions in Baildon Village and its immediate 

surroundings have been introduced to address long-stay parking problems and 
meet the needs of shoppers and visitors (thereby contributing to the benefit of the 
local economy). 

 
2.3 The proposed Residents Only Parking Place (ROPP) elements within the proposals 

are also intended to discourage long-stay commuter parking within the village and 
its surrounding residential streets. Drawing no. TGD/THN/102329/TRO-1B 
identifying the proposed parking restrictions in Baildon and surrounding area is 
attached as Appendix 1 of this report. A larger version of the drawing will be 
available at the Committee meeting on 16 March 2016. 

 
2.4 The Shipley Area Committee at its meeting on 3 April 2013 allocated funding to 

address parking concerns in and around Baildon. 
 
2.5 Following consultations with Local Members, the emergency services and West 

Yorkshire Combined Authority, the Baildon proposed TRO was formally advertised 
on 6 November 2015 for three weeks ending 27 November 2016. The formal 
advertisement resulted in 26 objections being received. 

 
2.6 The objectors’ concerns and officers’ comments are tabulated in Appendix 2 of this 

report. 
 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Following concerns expressed by a local business on Westgate, a decision was 

made not to alter the existing double yellow lines within the vicinity of no.18 
Westgate as that would allow disabled badge holders to park in this location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 3 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Financial 

The cost of introducing the proposed TRO will be met from this Committee’s capital 
allocation. 

 
4.2 Resources 

The proposed scheme can be processed within existing staff resources.  
 
 
5. OPTIONS 
 
5.1 Option 1 - The proposed Baildon TRO (as shown within Drawing No. 

TGD/THN/102329/TRO-1B (attached as Appendix 1 to this report) be approved, 
sealed and implemented as formally advertised subject to the following 
amendments: 

 
(a) - The proposed single yellow line on Langley Lane be omitted or reduced in 
length  

 
(b) - The proposed 2 hours short-stay parking on Jenny Lane be omitted between 
Heather Road and Heygate Lane  

(RECOMMENDED) 
 

5.2 Option 2 - The proposed Baildon TRO (as shown within Drawing No. 
TGD/THN/102329/TRO-1B (attached as Appendix 1 to this report) be approved, 
sealed and implemented as formally advertised. 

(NOT RECOMMENDED) 
 

5.3  Option 3 – The Committee may prefer to take a course of action other than that   
indicated in the above options or recommendations, in which case it would receive 
appropriate guidance from officers.  

 
 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
6.1 There are no risk management implications. 
 
 

7. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

There are no legal implications at present. 
 
8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS. 
 

None 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

In the event that the proposed TRO is developed further, due regard would be given 
to Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 

Page 15



 4 

 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no sustainability implications.   
 
8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

There are no implications regarding greenhouse gas emission impacts. 
 
8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The proposed parking restrictions would help keep sightlines clear at junctions and 
are intended to discourage long-stay parking in residential streets and within the 
village. 

 
8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are no implications for human rights. 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no implications for the trade unions.  
 
8.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
8.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

  
The development and implementation of schemes included in this report support   
priorities within the Shipley Area Committee Ward Plans 2015-16. 

 
9. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None   
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Option 1 - The proposed Baildon TRO (as shown within Drawing No. 

TGD/THN/102329/TRO-1B (attached as Appendix 1 to this report) be approved, 
sealed and implemented as formally advertised subject to the following 
amendments: 

 
(a) - The proposed single yellow line on Langley Lane be omitted or reduced in 
length;  

 
(b) - The proposed 2 hours short-stay parking on Jenny Lane be omitted between 
Heather Road and Heygate Lane 

 
10.2 That the objectors be advised accordingly. 
 
 

Page 16



 5 

11. APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix 1 - Drawing No. TGD/THN/102329/TRO-1B, showing the Baildon parking 

proposals as formally advertised. 
 
11.2 Appendix 2 – Objectors’ and officer comments.  
 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1  Shipley Area Committee Report 3 April 2013. 

Page 17



 6 

                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                   Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 

Page 18



 7 

                                                                                                                  Appendix 2                      

Objections -  Langley Lane 
 

Officer comments 

 

• Objecting to the introduction of 
parking restrictions on Langley Lane. 
I park my car in front of my house to 
see it as it has been repeatedly 
vandalised. The restrictions would 
force me to park away from my 
house. 

 
 

 

• My two children attend the school 
and I always support road safety 
measures around the school. The 
proposed parking restrictions on a 
section of Langley Lane would not 
address any road safety problems 
and would in fact displace the 
problems onto surrounding estate 
roads. Creating more on-street 
parking around the school would be 
beneficial to road users. Most of the 
residents in the area disagree with 
these ill thought proposals. 

 

• I disagree with the single yellow lines 
outside my house which would 
prevent residents from parking 
outside their own homes. The school 
should provide facilities within its 
curtilage for parents to park. Can the 
residents get permits parking to park 
on Langley Lane? 

 
 

• We accept there are road safety 
problems and congestion near the 
school during the start and end of the 
school day. Has any risk 
assessments been carried out 
regarding safety on this road? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• The residents along the proposed 
section of Langley Lane were initially 
consulted over the draft parking 
proposals outside their homes prior 
to the legal Order being formally 
advertised. The majority of residents 
supported the proposed restrictions 
from 8 – 9.30am and 2.30 – 4pm 
Monday to Friday. 

 

• The single yellow lines on this 
section of Langley Lane are aimed at 
creating safe passage for all road 
user groups, particularly allowing the 
school bus better access to 
Coverdale Way when accessing the 
school. These proposals arose from 
requests from some local residents 
and interested road users. The 
proposals would benefit all road 
users.  There is no proposal to 
introduce a ROPP scheme on 
Langley Lane. 

 

• The single yellow lines on this 
section of Langley Lane are intended 
to create safe passage for all road 
user groups, particularly allowing the 
school bus better access to 
Coverdale Way when accessing the 
school. The parking situation in the 
area would be monitored should the 
restrictions be implemented. 

 

• The main aim of introducing the 
single yellow line on this section of 
Langley Lane would be to stop on- 
street parking at the start and end of 
the school day and encourage  
residents to use their driveways.  
Obstruction and indiscriminate 
parking are common occurrences 
throughout the district. 
No formal risk assessment has been 
undertaken outside the school, 
although engineering analysis 
involving speed and volumetric 

Page 19



 8 

 
 
 
 

 

• Issues relating to the school should 
be addressed by the school and the 
Highways Authority and should not 
create any negative impact for the 
residents. The proposals will have a 
significant impact on the nearby 
residents and would displace the 
problems to other nearby roads. 

 
 

 
 

• The restrictions would de-value our 
properties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

surveys and traffic collision analysis 
has been carried out. A road safety 
campaign was also carried out within 
the vicinity of the school. 

 

•  The residents along the proposed 
section of Langley Lane were initially 
consulted over the draft proposals 
outside their homes prior to the 
proposed Legal Order being formally 
advertised. The majority of the 
residents supported the proposed 
restrictions from 8 – 9.30am and 2.30 
– 4pm Monday to Friday. If 
implemented, the parking situation 
around the school will be monitored 

 

• Noted, However, the proposed single 
yellow line restricting parking at the 
start and end of the school day has 
been carefully considered with a view 
to the proposals having a minimal 
impact on these residential 
properties. The restrictions are 
intended to provide safe passage for 
all road user groups and particularly 
the school bus (which has recently 
been obstructed by parked vehicles 
when accessing the school). These 
restrictions are considered 
appropriate to keep traffic flowing at 
the start and end of the school day. 

 
 

Objectors – Springfield Road. 
 

Officers’ comments 

 

• We are residents living on the upper 
section of Springfield Road objecting 
to the proposal to introduce permit 
parking on the lower section of 
Springfield Road as this would push 
parking onto the upper section of 
Springfield Road. We also want 
permit parking. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

• The current proposal is to issue 
permits to residents living on the 
lower section of Springfield Road that 
are very close to the village. The 
parking proposals are intended to 
improve the parking situation for local 
residents and businesses, and are 
supported by the majority of local 
residents and businesses. The upper 
section of Springfield Road (to which 
the objection relates) is not included 
in the proposed TRO. The parking 
situation on this road would be 
monitored should the proposed 

Page 20



 9 

 
 

• There are parking problems further 
up Springfield Road. There is 
currently long-stay parking outside 
our property and the proposed 
restrictions would displace vehicles 
further up the road. 

 

• Parking within the vicinity of 
driveways would create visibility 
problems. 

 

• I sometimes park on Springfield 
Road to attend Newton Way surgery 
as I can not park in the surgery 
because it is always full. 

 
 

 
 

 

• Parking on both sides of Springfield 
Road would create road safety 
problems for vehicles turning into 
Springfield Road from Newton Way. 
Some residents do not use their drive 
ways and park on the road and 
create problems for other road user 
groups.  

ROPP scheme implemented here. 
 

• This section of Springfield Road is 
not included in the proposed TRO. 
The parking situation on this road 
would be monitored to determine any 
potential parking issue.  

 

• The issue of any potential obstructive 
parking could be dealt with by West 
Yorkshire Police, or (in certain 
circumstances) Council wardens. 

 

• The proposed shared ROPP/short-
stay parking scheme on Springfield 
Road is intended to address long-
stay parking issues, whilst providing 
short-stay parking facilities to meet 
the needs of shoppers and visitors 
(including those going to the nearby 
medical centre).  

 

•  It would be inappropriate to 
introduce double yellow lines outside 
these residential properties on this 
section of Springfield Road. The on-
going parking situation will be 
monitored. 

 
 
 
 

Objectors  – Newton Way 
 

Officer comments 

 

• I would not object to the parking 
restrictions between 8am – 6pm Mon 
– Sat on Newton Way if a permit was 
issued to me to park on the road. My 
son and I are looking after my 
mother. There is space for one car in 
our small drive way and we have two 
cars and need immediate access to 
our cars. 

 

• I am looking after my 85 year old  
      mother and the pubic wasn’t given    
      sufficient time to comment on the   
      proposals.  
 
 

 

• The parking proposals are intended 
to improve the parking situation for 
local residents and businesses. 
There is no proposed ROPP scheme 
for the residents of Newton Way to 
park on Newton Way. The proposals 
however, would allow two hours 
short-stay parking 8am to 6pm Mon – 
Friday for  Newton Way residents. 

 

• In accordance with normal practice, 
the Legal Notices regarding the 
proposed TRO were erected on-site 
for a three week period. The Legal 
Notices were also advertised in the 
local press. 

Page 21



 10 

 

• I am self employed living on Newton 
Way and park my van on Newton 
Way. The proposed double yellow 
line would stop me parking outside 
my house. Your proposals should 
provide me with a safe place for me 
to park my van near my house. 

 

 

• The parking proposals are intended 
to improve the parking situation for 
local residents and businesses. 
There is no proposed ROPP scheme 
for the residents of Newton Way to 
park on Newton Way. The proposals 
however, would allow two hours 
short stay parking 8am to 6pm Mon – 
Friday for Newton Way residents. 

 
 

Objector – Westgate 
 

Officer comments 

 

• Why are residents of nos. 35 – 43 
not getting resident permits? The 
residents of this section would 
benefit from a ROPP scheme here.  

 
 
 
 

 

• Parking above no. 32A Westgate 
(which is behind the existing double 
yellow lines) causes obstructions to 
other road users.  

 

• Parking should not be allowed on 
Springfield Road near the junction 
with Newton Way  

 
 
 

• Allowing short-stay parking within the 
proposed ROPP scheme would 
create parking problems for  
residents.   

 

 

• These properties have off street 
parking at the rear side, and this 
section of Westgate does not meet 
the criteria for ROPP provision. 
Every effort however, has been 
made to minimise the impact of these 
parking restrictions on surrounding 
residential areas.   

 

• This concern will be passed to the 
Council’s wardens with a view to 
them monitoring the area and taking 
appropriate enforcement action. 

 

• Double yellow lines have been 
proposed at the junction of 
Springfield Road with Newton Way to 
remove obstructive parking and 
enhance driver sightlines. 

 

• The main objectives of the proposed 
TRO scheme is to remove the long- 
stay parking and allow short-stay 
parking facilities for shoppers and 
visitors.  

 
A road user – Baildon proposed 
parking 

Officer comments 

 

• Objecting to parking proposals in 
Baildon village. This would displace 
vehicles around the Hallcliffe area as 
there are no restrictions on this road. 
Displacing parking on this narrow, 
poorly lit road would create road 
safety hazards for pedestrians. 

 

• The proposed short-stay parking 
restrictions are intended to 
address long-stay parking and 
meet the short-stay parking 
needs of shoppers and visitors 
(thereby contributing to the 
benefit of the local economy). 

Page 22



 11 

 
 

Every effort has been made to 
minimise the impact of these 
parking restrictions on 
surrounding residential areas.  

 
    A resident – South View Terrace 
 

Officer’s comments 

• A resident is asking for a ROPP 
scheme to be introduced  on 
South View Terrace.  

• South View Terrace is an 
unadopted public highway and 
the Council is not responsible for 
maintaining this road as the 
responsibility rests with the 
frontages as street managers.  It 
was not considered appropriate to 
include this unadopted road 
within the proposed TRO, and 
therefore there is no proposal to 
allocate permits to South View 
Terrace residents. 

 
Objectors - Bank Walk/Bank Crest 
 

Officer’s comments 

• The proposed double yellow lines 
on Bank Walk would stop us from 
parking outside our property.  

 
 

 
 

• Displaced vehicles would create 
problems for residents on this 
road. Parents with young children 
need to park near the existing  
Ofsted registered child minding 
business on this road. 

 
 

• There have not been any 
accidents on this road since 
2007.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

• This section of Bank Walk is very 
narrow and has a foot path on 
one side.  The double yellow lines 
are aimed at removing potential 
parking next to or on the footway, 
thereby protecting pedestrians.  

 

• The proposed restrictions on this 
section of Bank Walk are  
considered appropriate to stop 
any potential footway parking. 
This would also encourage  
parents to walk to the area by 
parking in Westgate. 

 

• The Baildon parking proposals 
scheme is not a casualty 
Reduction Scheme. The 
proposed short-stay parking 
restrictions in Baildon village and 
its immediate surroundings have 
been introduced to address long-
stay parking problems and meet 
the short-stay parking needs of 
shoppers and visitors (thereby 
contributing to the benefit of the 
local economy). Every effort has 
been made to minimise the 
impact of the proposed parking 

Page 23



 12 

 
 
 

• Introducing the double yellow 
lines on Bank Walk would 
encourage motorists to drive fast. 
We would like to see the 
proposals revised to address the 
above concerns. We made the 
highways department aware of 
parking problems on Bank Crest 
in 2012. Any parking restrictions 
in the village would make parking 
more difficult for the residents. 

 

restrictions on surrounding 
residential areas.  

 

• The proposed restrictions on this 
section of Bank Walk are  
considered necessary to stop any 
potential footway parking, and 
would also encourage parents to 
walk to the area by parking in 
Westgate. The proposed short- 
stay parking restrictions in 
Baildon village and its immediate 
surroundings have been 
introduced to address long-stay 
parking problems and meet the 
short-stay parking needs of 
shoppers and visitors (thereby 
contributing to the benefit of the 
local economy). Every effort has 
been made to minimise the 
impact of these proposed parking 
restrictions on surrounding 
residential areas.  

 
A resident in Brook Hill, Baildon      Officer’s comments 

• Many old properties in Baildon do not 
have off street parking facilities and 
the residents and their visitors should 
be allowed to park near their homes 
for security reasons. Most of the 
roads in Baildon are wide enough to 
allow parking and traffic movement 
safely. Introducing parking on the 
narrow roads should operate like 
Otley Road in Eldwick and the 
resident permit schemes in Saltaire. 
 
 
 

• I object to the all parking 
proposals in the village. 

 
 

• The Council should provide off 
street parking facilities by 
converting all grass verges to 
parking areas which also saves 
the Council money by not having 
to maintain the grass verges. 

• The proposed short-stay parking 
restrictions in Baildon village and 
its immediate surroundings have 
been introduced to address long-
stay parking problems and meet 
the short-stay parking needs of 
shoppers and visitors (thereby 
contributing to the benefit of the 
local economy). Every effort has 
been made to minimise the 
impact of these parking 
restrictions on surrounding 
residential areas.   

 

• The proposals are supported by 
Local Members and are aimed at 
encouraging short-stay parking. 

 

• There is currently no specific 
budget to provide parking in 
residential areas and villages by 
converting grass verges into 
hard-standings. Such works 
would contradict the Council’s 
sustainable travel policy that is 
aimed at encouraging walking 

Page 24



 13 

and cycling. 
 
 A resident – Cornwall Crescent,    
 Baildon 

 
     Officer’s comments 

 

• All parking restrictions are within 
walking distance of the village. 
The car parks in Baildon are very 
expensive and these restrictions 
would create a lot of problems for 
people working in the village. 

 

• The proposed short-stay parking 
restrictions in Baildon village and 
its immediate surroundings have 
been introduced to address long-
stay parking problems and meet 
the short-stay parking needs of 
shoppers and visitors (thereby 
contributing to the benefit of the 
local economy). Every effort has 
been made to minimise the 
impact of the proposed parking 
restrictions on surrounding 
residential areas.  
Bradford has the cheapest 
parking of any Metropolitan 
District in the UK. 

 
 Objections – Jenny Lane  
 

    Officer’s comments 

 

• These objectors are concerns 
over the proposed ROPP scheme 
on Jenny Lane. The objectors live 
on East Parade and park on 
Jenny Lane as they cannot park 
on Heather Road (as a ROPP 
scheme currently operates there). 
Some East Parade residents are 
elderly and would have problems 
walking longer distances to park. 

 

• The surface of East Parade is 
very rough and has big pot holes 
that could damage your vehicle 
by driving on the road. Other 
roads in the area have permit 
parking restrictions. My parents 
are both severely ill and could not 
walk long distances. Issuing a 
permit to park on Heather Road 
would be appreciated. 

 
 

• My husband and I are suffering 
from poor health. We could not 
park on East Parade due to its 

 

• The proposed ROPP scheme on 
Jenny Lane would restrict long 
stay parking from 8am to 6pm 
from Mon – Sat. Short-stay on- 
street parking would be allowed 
on Jenny Lane to accommodate 
people visiting the village. East 
Parade residents are not included 
within the proposed ROPP 
scheme on Jenny Lane.  

 

• East Parade is an un-adopted 
public highway and the Council is 
not responsible for maintaining 
this road as the responsibility 
rests with the frontages as street 
managers. Therefore there is no 
proposal to allocate permits to 
East Parade residents. 

 
 
 
 

• The residents of East Parade are 
not included within the proposed 
ROPP scheme on Jenny Lane.  

Page 25



 14 

uneven surface.  We used to park 
on Heather Road but this road 
now has ROPP restrictions on it. 
We park on Jenny Lane at the 
moment. 

 

• My elderly parents live on East 
Parade I live on East Parade and 
park in Jenny Lane. 

 

• We have repeatedly asked the 
Council to adopt the road 

 
 

 
 
 
 

• The residents of East Parade are 
not included within the proposed 
ROPP scheme on Jenny Lane.  

 

• There is currently no available  
Council  budget to adopt un-
adopted highways. However, the 
Council could potentially arrange 
for the road to be adopted at the 
residents’ expense. 

 
Objector’s points – Health clinic , 
Cliffe Ave, Baildon 
 

      Officer’s comments 

 

• NHS community podiatrist visiting 
over 100 mainly elderly people in 
Baildon.  Our staff who are visiting 
Heather Road and Laburnum Road 
do park in Jenny Lane as some of 
the residents on these roads do not 
have cars. Is it possible to have a 
few parking permits issued for the 
staff ? 

 

• All proposed ROPP schemes in the  
Baildon Area would provide up to 2 
hours short-stay on-street parking for 
non-permit holders, and each house 
included with the ROPP Legal Order 
would be issued a ‘visitors’ permit. It 
is not considered necessary to issue 
any parking permits to NHS staff.  

 

 
 
 

Page 26



 

Report of the Strategic Director of Regeneration to the 
meeting of the Shipley Area Committee to be held on  
16 March 2016. 
 
Subject: 

AJ 
Objections to an advertised 20mph zone (comprising ten round top road humps) on 
the existing 20mph length of Moor Road, Burley Woodhead. 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report seeks the decision of this Committee regarding objections received to 
the advertised 20mph zone (comprising ten round top road humps) on Moor Road, 
Burley Woodhead. 
 
It is recommended that: 
 

•      That this Committee overrules the objections relating to the proposals as      
           originally advertised and as shown within drawing No. TDG/THN/102345/CON- 
           1B (attached as Appendix 2 of this report) and approves the revised  
           proposals as shown on drawing No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as  
           Appendix 3 of this report), and 
 

•      That the proposed traffic calming scheme as shown on drawing 
No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of this report) becomes 
an extension of the existing adjoining 20mph zone on Moor Road, Burley 
Woodhead (Appendix 1 refers)  

 

•      That the lead petitioner and objectors be advised accordingly.  
 

•  
                                                                                                     Ward 26 – Wharfedale 
 
Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director (Regeneration) 

Portfolio:   
 
Housing, Planning and Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Simon D’Vali 
Phone: (01274) 432100 
E-mail: simon.dvali@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environmental and Waste Management 

Page 27

Agenda Item 3/



 

 2 

 
1. SUMMARY 

 
1.1 This report seeks a decision of this  Committee regarding objections received    

in response to an advertised traffic calming scheme to install ten round top road 
hump on the  existing 20mph length of Moor Road, Burley Woodhead. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 At its meeting on 11 November 2015, this Committee considered a 124 signature E- 

petition and three letters objecting to advertised proposals to install ten round top 
road humps on the existing 20mph section of Moor Road, Burley Woodhead. 

 
2.2 Plan No. TDG/THN/102345/CON-1B (attached to this report as appendix 2) shows 

the location of the formally advertised existing ten road humps on Moor Road, 
Burley Woodhead.   

 
2.3 A speed and volumetric survey was carried out on Thursday 11 February 2016 on 

that length of Moor Road identified within Appendix 1 of this report (ie. that length 
comprising an exisitng 20mph zone with road humps). The results showed that of 
the 4286 (24 hour) two-way traffic flow, 2769 vehicles (ie. 65 %) complied with the 
20mph speed limit.  

 
2.4     A speed and volumetric survey was carried out on Thursday 11 October 2012 on 

that length of Moor Road identified within Appendix 1 and 2 of this report (ie. that 
length subject to an existing 20mph speed limit but without humps)). The results 
showed that of the 4477 (24 hour) two-way traffic flow, only 840 vehicles (ie. 19) 
comply with the 20mph speed limit. The highest recorded speed was between 46-
51 mph. 

 
2.5 Council records show that two Traffic collisions resulting in personal injury (both 

‘slight’ in terms of severity) occurred during the five year period ending 31 
December 2015. Speed was an indirect contributory factor in both traffic collisions. 

 
2.6 On 11 November 2015, this Committee resolved to defer its decision regarding the 

advertised traffic calming scheme identified within Appendix 2 of this report to allow 
the Strategic Director, Regeneration to present a further report in response to this 
Committee’s query regarding the following: 

 
- The estimated cost of re-profiling the existing road humps on Moor Road, Burley 

Woodhead (Appendix 1 refers) to the same height as the humps in the proposed 
scheme (Appendix 2 refers), and   

 
- investigating potential savings which could be made by reducing the number of 

proposed road humps on Moor Road, whilst still achieving the criteria for a 
20mph zone.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

 3 

3. Reprofiling of Existing Road Humps 
 

Plan No. TDG/THN/102345/APP-1A (attached to this report as appendix 1) shows  
the location of the existing eleven road humps on Moor Road, Burley Woodhead. 
Re-profiling the eleven road humps could damage them beyond repair, in which 
case the humps would need replacing. The estimated cost of remove the existing 
11 road humps and rebuilding new ones would be approximately £29,000 which 
includes traffic management and diversion works. It is the professional opinion of 
officers that it is not practical to try and reshape the profile of the existing eleven 
road humps. 

 
 
4.  Reduction in number of proposed road humps 
 

The proposed scheme as originally advertised and considered by this Committee 
on 11 November 2015 has now been revised with three sets of proposed road 
humps being replaced with 20mph carriageway roundels. The revised scheme to 
that originally advertised is shown within Drawing No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C 
(attached to this report as Appendix 3).Whilst it is considered that the three 
roundels will be less effective in reducing traffic speeds than would the 3 road 
humps they replace, roundels are classified as traffic calming features and would 
mean that the criteria for a 20mph zone (regarding the sequential placing traffic 
calming features within the zone) would be met. 

 
The locations of the proposed three replacement roundels are all rural in nature.  

 
 
5 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
5.1 Local Members and the Emergency Services will have been consulted on the 

revised scheme proposals (Appendix 3 of this report refers) prior to the Committee 
meeting of 16 March 2016. Any comments received from them will be reported to 
the meeting. 

 
5.2 On 25 July 2007, this Committee considered a report relating to the possible re-

profiling of the existing road humps on Moor Road, Burley Woodhead, and resolved 
that the improved road safety in Burley Woodhead be acknowledged and the 
reduction in accidents since traffic calming has been introduced ne welcomed. 

 
5.3 The speed survey results referred to in sections 2.3 and 2.4 of this report are 

evidence that driver compliance with the existing 20mph speed limits on Moor Road 
is much higher where road humps are in-situ.  

 

 
6. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
6.1 The funding associated with the proposed traffic calming scheme has been 

allocated from this Committee’s Capital budget allocation. However, there is no 
funding available to carry out any works on the existing road humps at this moment 
in time. 

 

Page 29



 

 4 

 
7. RESOURCE 

 
The proposed traffic calming scheme can be processed within existing staff 
resources. 

 

 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 

There are no risk management implications 
 
 

9. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

There are no legal implications at present 
 
 
10. AREA COMMITTEE WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
 

The development and implementation of schemes included in this report support 
priorities within the Shipley Area Committee Ward Plans 2015-16. 

 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
11.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

In the event the proposed scheme is developed further, due regard would be given 
to Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
11.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no sustainability implications 
 
 
11.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

There are no implications regarding greenhouse gas emission impacts. 
 
 
11.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The proposed revised traffic calming features as shown on drawing No. 
TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C attached to this report as Appendix 3 are intended to 
reduce the speed of traffic on the existing 20mph section of Moor Road, thereby 
helping to reduce community severance  and the potential for traffic collisions. 

 
 
 

Page 30



 

 5 

11.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are no implications for human rights. 
 
 
11.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no implications for the trade unions 
 
 
11.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
 
12. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None.  
 
 
14. OPTIONS 

 
           Option 1 – That this Committee overrules the objections relating to the proposals   
           as originally advertised and as shown within drawing No. TDG/THN/102345/CON-  
           1B (attached as Appendix 2 of this report)  and approves the revised proposals as  
           shown on drawing No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of this  
           report), and 

 
That the proposed traffic calming scheme as shown on drawing 
No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of this report) becomes an 
extension of the existing adjoining 20mph zone on Moor Road, Burley Woodhead 
(Appendix 1 refers)  
                                                                                                      (RECOMMENDED) 
 
 

 
Option 2 – That the proposals as originally advertised and as shown within drawing 
No. TDG/THN/102345/CON-1B (attached as Appendix 2 of this report) be 
abandoned as a result of the objections received. (NOT RECOMMENDED) 

  
 

Option 3 – That the revised proposals as shown within drawing No. 
TDG/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of this report) be abandoned. 
(NOT RECOMMENDED) 

 
 

Option 4 – That the request for the removal or re–profiling of the existing road 
humps on Moor Road be added to the list of candidates considered annually by this 
Committee for possible inclusion within its 2016/17 road safety programme. (NOT 
RECOMMENDED) 

 

Page 31



 

 6 

 
Option 5 - Members may prefer to take a course of action other than that indicated 
in the above options or the recommendations, in which case they will receive 
appropriate guidance from officers. 

 
 
14. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1 It is recommended that: 
 

   Option 1 

• That this Committee overrules the objections relating to the proposals as      
              originally advertised and as shown within drawing No.  
              TDG/THN/102345/CON-1B (attached as Appendix 2 of this report) and  
              approves the revised proposals as shown on drawing  
              No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of this report), and 
 

• That the proposed traffic calming scheme as shown on drawing   
               No.TGD/THN/102345/CON-1C (attached as Appendix 3 of this report)  
               becomes an extension of the existing adjoining 20mph zone on Moor Road,  
               Burley Woodhead (Appendix 1 refers)  
 

• That the lead petitioner and objectors be advised accordingly.  
 
 

 
15. APPENDICES 
 
15.1 Appendix 1– Location plan identifying existing eleven round-top road humps on 

Moor Road, Burley Woodhead - (Drawing No. TDG/THN/102345/APP-1A).  
 
15.2 Appendix 2 – Location plan identifying the proposed road hump scheme on Moor 

Road, Burley Woodhead as originally advertised and considered by this Committee 
on 11 November 2015 – (Drawing No. TDG/THN/102345/CON-1B) 

 
15.3 Appendix 3 – Location plan identifying revised proposed road humps scheme on 

Moor Road, Burley Woodhead (Drawing No. TDG/THN/102345/CON-1C) 
 
 
16. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
16.1 Report to the Shipley Area Committee on 25 July 2007 
 
16.2 Report to the Shipley Area Committee report on 3 April 2014 
 
16.3 Report to the Shipley Area Committee on 1 July 2015 
 
16.4 Report to the Shipley Area Committee on 11 November 2015 

Page 32



 

 7 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

 8 

APPENDIX 2 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 34



 

 9 

APPENDIX 3 

 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Strategic Director of Regeneration to the 
meeting of the Shipley Area Committee to be held on  
16 March 2016. 
 
Subject: 

AK 
A petition from the residents of Cedar Street, Crossflatts, requesting the removal of 
the existing two hour short-stay on-street parking facilities from the existing 
Residents Only Parking Places (ROPP) scheme on Cedar Street, Crossflatts. 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report considers the petitioners’ request to remove the exiting two hours short- 
stay on-street parking facilities from the existing Resident Only Persons Parking 
(ROPP) scheme on Cedar Street, Crossflatts. 
 
It is recommended that: 
 

• This Committee notes the concerns of the petitioners and recommends no 
further action on this matter at this moment in time, although the petitioners' 
request be reconsidered when an appropriate parking review is being 
undertaken. 

 

• The lead petitioner and signatories be advised accordingly.  
 
                                                                                                             Ward 2 – Bingley 
 
 
 
 
Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director (Regeneration) 

Portfolio:   
 
Housing, Planning and Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Simon D’Vali 
Phone: (01274) 432100 
E-mail: simon.dvali@bradford.gov.uk 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environmental and Waste Management 

  
 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4/



 

 

2 

 
1. SUMMARY 

 
1.1 An 18 signature petition has been received from the residents of Cedar Street, 

Crossflatts, requesting the removal of the existing two hour short-stay on-street 
parking facilities on Cedar Street and that parking on the road be limited to resident 
permit holders and visitors of those permit holders. An extract from the petition is 
attached to this report as Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 The lead petitioner stresses that most residents in this sheltered housing are elderly 

and disabled and all parking spaces are taken by visitors using the two hours 
limited parking facilities on the road. 

 
1.3 The lead petitioner is a resident of Cedar Street, Crossflatts. 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Cedar Street is a cul de sac off Canal Road and close to Crossflatts Railway Station. 

The road comprises predominately residential properties and is subject to a ROPP 
scheme that also allows two hours short-stay parking provision for non-permit 
holders. The properties on Cedar Street are sheltered residential accommodation. 
 

2.2 A plan showing the existing parking arrangements in Cedar Street is attached to this 
report as appendix 2. 
 

2.3 There are a number of businesses, including takeaways, a butcher, a news agent 
and a hairdresser on Canal Road. This area is also very close to Crossflatts railway 
station. 

 
2.4 The existing ROPP / 2 hours limited waiting scheme in Cedar Street was 

implemented several years ago and financed by this Committee. The scheme 
sought to address the concerns of residents and business regarding the long-stay 
commuter parking in the area (much of which was associated with the nearby 
Crossflatts Railway Station). The 2 hour limited waiting provision for non-permit 
holders was intended to accommodate the short-stay parking needs of visitors to 
local shops and amenities (thereby contributing to the local economy). 

 
2.5 The existing scheme involved promoting a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) and 

involved comprehensive public consultation.   
 
2.6 Any modifications to the existing parking arrangements in Cedar Street would 

require processing a further TRO (including the necessary mandatory public 
consultation) and would require the support of this Committee to finance it. Currently 
no funding has been allocated to explore the possibility of altering the existing 
parking arrangements on Cedar Street. 

 
2.7 Local Members are aware of the petitioners’ request. 

Page 38



 

 

3 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 At its meeting of 1 July 2015, this Committee approved finance to promote a TRO 

relating to the Bingley Area (which includes Crossflatts) to address parking 
problems in Bingley. Scheme feasibility regarding the proposed TRO has not yet 
commenced. 

 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 The estimated cost of processing a freestanding TRO to modify the existing parking 

arrangements in Cedar Street would be £6,000. 
 
 
5. RESOURCES 

 
There are no staffing implications at present. 

 
 

6. OPTIONS 
 

6.1      Option 1 – That this Committee notes the concerns of the petitioners and  
          recommends no further action on this matter at this moment in time, although the  
          petitioners' request be reconsidered when an appropriate parking review is being  
          undertaken. (Recommended). 
 
6.2 Option 2 – That the petitioners’ request be added to the list of scheme candidates 

considered annually by this Committee for possible inclusion within its future 
programme of locally determined works. (Not recommended) 

 

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 

There are no risk management implications 
 
 

8. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

There are no legal implications at present 
 
 
9. AREA COMMITTEE WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
 

There are no implications arising from this report regarding the Shipley Area 
Committee Ward Plans 2015-16. 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

 

4 

 
10. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
10.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

In the event that a scheme was developed, regard would be given to Section 149 of 
the Equality Act 2010. 

 
10.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no sustainability implications. 
 
10.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

There are no implications regarding greenhouse gas emission impacts. 
 
10.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

.There are no community safety implications. 
 
10.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are no implications for human rights. 
 
10.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no implications for the trade unions. 
 
10.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
11. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None.  
 
 
12. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1  Option 1 – 
           This Committee notes the concerns of the petitioners and recommends no further  

      action on this matter at this moment in time, although the petitioners' request be  
      reconsidered when an appropriate parking review is being undertaken. 

 
 
12.2 That the lead petitioner and signatories be advised accordingly. 

Page 40



 

 

5 

 
 
13. APPENDICES 
 
13.1 Appendix 1– An extract of the petition. 
 
13.2 Appendix 2 – A plan showing the existing parking restrictions on Cedar Street. 
 
 
14. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
14.1 Report to the Shipley Area Committee on 1st July 2015  

Page 41



 

 

6 

 

                                                                                      APPENDIX 1 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 42



 

 

7 

 

                                                                                      APPENDIX 2 

  

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

Report of the Director of Regeneration to the meeting of 
the Shipley Area Committee to be held on 16 March 
2016. 
 
 
Subject: 

AL 
One objection received to the proposed Speed Limit Order to introduce a 20mph 
zone on a section of Sun Lane, Burley in Wharfedale. 
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report considers one objection received to the advertised proposal to 
introduce a 20mph zone on the existing one-way section of Sun Lane (between its 
junctions with Main Street and West View Road) in Burley In Wharfedale. 
 
It is recommended that: 
 
 

• This Committee overrule the objection and the proposed Speed Limit Order  
to introduce a 20mph zone on Sun lane be approved, sealed and implemented 
as formally advertised. 

 

• The objector be informed of the decision. 
 
 

                                                                                                      Ward 26 – Wharfedale 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director  
(Regeneration) 

 
Portfolio:   
 
Environment and Sustainability 
 

Report Contact: Simon D’Vali 
Phone: 01535 61 8181 
 
E-mail: simon.dvali@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:   
 
Environment and Waste Management 
 

 
Page 45

Agenda Item 5/



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 
 

 2 

 
1. Summary 
 

Consideration of one objection received to the proposed Speed Limit Notice to 
introduce a 20mph zone on Sun Lane in Burley in Wharfedale. 

 
 
2. Background 
  
2.1 Sun Lane is subject to a ‘one-way’ traffic system (west-bound) and links Main 

Street and West View Road. Sun Lane is predominantly residential in nature with a 
30mph speed limit and has a footway on only one side. 

  
2.3 This Committee has received concerns from local residents regarding traffic speeds 

and driver behaviour on this narrow one-way road.  
 
2.4 On 3rd April 2013, this  Committee  included  Sun lane in  its 2014/2015 Traffic    
           Management Measures Programme. The scheme proposals were drafted as  
           shown in Drawing   No.TDG/THN/AS/102346/SLO-1A (attached as Appendix  
           1 to this report). 
 
2.5 It is anticipated that the proposed 20mph zone measures would create a safer   

environment on Sun Lane. 
 
2.6      A speed and volumetric survey carried out on Tuesday 27 January 2015 showed  
           that during the morning period 9-10am, 75 vehicles used that section  
           of Sun Lane to which the proposed 20mph zone relates. During the evening period  
           between 5-6pm, 142 vehicles used Sun Lane. Of these, 85 vehicles drove between     
           16-21mph. 
  
2.7      Council records show that for the five year period ending December 2014, no traffic  
           collisions resulting in personal injury occurred on that length of Sun Lane between  
           its junctions with Main Street and West View Road. 
 
2.8 In November 2015, a consultation letter and plan showing the proposed 20mph 

zone scheme was delivered to all residents of Sun Lane and no adverse comments 
were received. 

 
2.9     On the basis of this consultation with local residents (and with the agreement               
           of Local Members) the proposed 20mph Speed Limit Order was formally advertised  
           on 14 January 2016 for three weeks ending Friday 5 February  2016. This has  
           resulted in one objection being received via an e mail. The objector has provided  
           no residential address 
 
 
3. Other Considerations 

 
3.1 The receipt of only a single objection suggests most residents support the 

proposed scheme.  
 

Page 46



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 
 

 3 

3.2 Local ward members and the emergency services have been consulted on the 
proposals and their views taken into consideration. 

3.3 Local Ward Members are aware of the objection received. 
 
 
4.  Options 
 

Option 1 – The proposals could be approved, sealed and  implemented as formally  
advertised. 

 
Option 2 – The proposals could be abandoned as a result of the objection. 

 
Option 3 – Members may prefer to take a course of action other than that indicated 
in the above options or the recommendations, in which case they will receive 
appropriate guidance from others. 

 
 
5. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION 
 

This report has not been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
6. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 

Financial 
 
6.1. The  costs  necessary  to  introduce  the  proposed   traffic   management   scheme  

(Including the processing of the associated Speed Limit Order) has been allocated 
from the Shipley Area Committee Capital allocation. 

 
 
6.2. Resources 
 

The proposed 20mph zone can be processed within existing staff resources. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

There are no risk management implications 
 
8. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

There are no legal implications at present 
 
 
9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 EQUAL RIGHTS 
 
           There are no implications for equal rights. 
 

Page 47



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 
 

 4 

9.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no sustainability implications 
 
 
9.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

There are no implications regarding greenhouse gas emissions impacts 
 
 
9.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The proposed 20mph zone is intended to reduce the speed of traffic on Sun Lane, 
thereby helping to reduce community severance and the potential for traffic 
collisions. 

 
9.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are no implications for human rights 
 
 
9.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no implications for the trade unions 
 
 
9.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
 
10. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None   
 
11. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 Option 1 -  That the proposals be approved, sealed and  implemented as formally     
           advertised. 
 
11.2 That the objector be informed accordingly. 
 
12. APPENDICES 
 
12.1   Appendix 1, Drawing no. TDG/THN/AS/102346/CON/-1B showing the proposals 
 
          Appendix 2, Objector’s points and officers’ comments 
 
13. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Report of the Shipley Area Committee on 3rd April 2013 

Page 48



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 
 

 5 

Appendix 1 

 
 

 

 
Page 49



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 
 
 
 

 6 

Appendix 2 
 
 
Objector’s Comments Officer’s Comments 
 
 

• I object to the proposed 20mph 
zone on Sun Lane because I am 
unable to ascertain the reasons 
behind these proposals and what 
they are aiming to address. 

 
 
 
 

• I do not believe that the proposed 
20 mph zone scheme would 
address the issues it aims to solve. 

 
 
 

• Have alternative traffic measures 
schemes been considered for Sun 
Lane? 

 
 
 

 
 

• When were the street notices 
placed on Sun Lane? 

 
 
 
 

 
 

• The proposed signage cannot be 
placed as described by the order as 
it would obstruct pedestrians and 
affect local aesthetic. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

• Over the last few this Committee has 
received concerns from local 
residents regarding traffic speeds 
and driver behaviour on this narrow 
one-way road. The receipt of only a 
single objection suggests the 
scheme proposals are supported by 
Sun Lane residents.  

 

• Although the site’s road safety 
record presents limited  potential for 
casualty reduction, the scheme’s 
primary aim is to address local 
concerns causing residents anxiety. 

 

• During the feasibility stage, a 
number of other traffic management 
measures including installing vertical 
and horizontal features were 
explored but considered 
inappropriate.  

 
 

• The legal notices advising of the 
scheme proposals were erected on 
Sun Lane on Thursday 14 January 
2016 for three weeks, ending on 
Friday 5 February 2016. The Notices 
were also published in the local 
press. 

 

• It is not considered that the 
proposed sign poles will obstruct 
pedestrians and every possible effort 
will be taken to minimise the impact 
of the proposed signs in the area. 

 

Page 50



 

Report of the Strategic Director, Regeneration, to the 
meeting of the Shipley Area Committee to be held on 16 
March 2016. 
 
 

AM 
Subject:  
 
HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE NON-CLASSIFIED ROADS AND SURFACE DRESSING 
ALLOCATION FOR SHIPLEY CONSTITUENCY- 2016/17 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report provides information on the Capital Highway Maintenance funding element of 
the Local Transport Plan for 2016/17 and makes recommendations on the allocation for 
Non-Classified road resurfacing schemes and Surface Dressing sites in the Shipley 
constituency. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wards: All Shipley

Mike Cowlam 
Strategic Director Regeneration 

Portfolio:   
 
Housing, Planning & Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Andy Fisher 
Principal Engineer, Highway 
Maintenance North 
Phone: 01535 618297 
E-mail: andy.fisher@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment and Waste Management 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6/



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

      2 

 
1.0. SUMMARY 

1.1  This report provides information on the Capital Highway Maintenance element of 
 the Local Transport Plan for 2016/17 and makes recommendations on the 
 allocation for Non-classified road resurfacing schemes and Surface Dressing sites 
 in the Shipley constituency. 

2.0. BACKGROUND 

2.1  The Capital Highway Maintenance element of the Local Transport Plan for Bradford 
 in 2015/16 was £4,565,000. This covered all classification of road including A, B, C 
 Classified roads and Non-Classified roads. For information purposes, Appendix 1 
 summarises the road resurfacing schemes completed in the Shipley constituency 
 during the 2015/16 financial year. 

2.2  The Capital Highway Maintenance element of the Local Transport Plan for all 
 classifications of road in Bradford for 2016/17 is £4,438,000. 

2.3  It is essential that local highway maintenance continues to be prioritised, reflecting 
the economic and social importance to communities and the need to safeguard the 
largest single local public asset. As such, the allocation is to be prioritised on those 
roads in most need of maintenance. 

2.4  The varying types and classifications of roads are routinely monitored by 
standardised survey equipment. The sites chosen for inclusion are those that have 
been shown to be in the most need of repair on the most recent survey. This is 
supplemented by those roads that are known to have suffered increased 
deterioration due to the ageing process and recent winter weather. 

2.5  An initial recommended selection of Non-Classified and Surface Dressing sites is 
included in Appendices 2 and 3 (respectively) attached. 

2.6  The list of Non-Classified resurfacing sites (Appendix 2) shows an initially 
recommended programme, based on overall condition, to the value of £240,000. A 
reserve list is also presented within Appendix 2. Members may seek to substitute 
schemes from the recommended programme with those from the reserve list as is 
deemed necessary to meet local highway maintenance concerns. Also, if it 
transpires that it is not feasible to progress any of the originally selected schemes, 
these will be substituted with alternatives from the reserve lists. 

2.7  The suggested programme of Surface Dressing sites, totalling 8,000m (approx. 
£185,000) is attached as Appendix 3.  

2.8  In order that programme delivery can be achieved within the 2016/17 financial year 
it is imperative that the committee approves a works programme at this stage. 

Page 52



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

      3 

 

3.0  OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 There are no other considerations at this time. 

4.0 FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

4.1  The total value of schemes in Appendix 2 exceeds the allocated budget for Non-
 Classified roads for 2016/17. This is in the region of £1.2m for the whole of the 
 Bradford Metropolitan District, which equates to around £240,000 for the Shipley 
 constituency. 

4.2 Indicative funding has been identified for each scheme but the actual cost will be 
 determined through the scheme development process. The identification of a 
 reserve list of works is necessary in order to offset schemes that inevitably will be 
 delayed as a consequence of unforeseen circumstances such as work by statutory 
 bodies and conflicts with other major schemes, etc. There may also need to be 
 further adjustment to the programme following the more detailed costing process. 
 Any sites that are deferred for whatever reason will roll over to the following year’s 
 list. 

4.3 The total value of the schemes identified in Appendix 3 does not exceed the 
anticipated capital allocation for 2016/17 for Surface Dressing. This is in the region 
of £1.1m for the whole of the Bradford Metropolitan District and also includes A, B 
and C Classified roads. Consequently it is the intention that work will be completed 
on all of those sites listed. It is possible, however, that some of the schemes may 
need to be deferred, again likely due to conflicts with works by other bodies, 
statutory undertakers, etc. Any schemes that are deferred for whatever reason will 
roll over to the following year’s programme. 

5.0  RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1 A failure to prioritise highway maintenance schemes based upon condition and 
 safety survey data will result in an increased requirement for reactive maintenance 
 and lead to a reduction in road safety conditions and an associated increase in 
 successful insurance claims against the Council. 

6.0  LEGAL APPRAISAL 

6.1 There are no specific issues arising from this report.  The course of action proposed 
is in general accordance with the Councils power as Highway Authority. 

6.2 All works undertaken will be carried out within the requirements of the Highways Act 
1980. 

7.0  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
7.1.1 In writing this report, due regard has been given of the need to eliminate unlawful 
 discrimination, harassment and victimisation, to advance quality of opportunity 

Page 53



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

      4 

 between different groups and to foster good relations between different groups  
 
 
 under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.2.1 Proactive repairs, such as surface dressing, serve to extend carriageway life. 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
7.3.1 There are no greenhouse gas implications arising from this report 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.4.1 Maintenance of the local highway network is essential to ensure the safe passage 
 of all road users. 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
7.5.1 There are no human rights implications arising from this report. 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
7.6.1 There are no trade union implications arising from this report. 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.7.1 The suggested programmes have been determined on the basis of condition 
 surveys, hence the proposed level of funding may differ from ward to ward for the 
 programme year. However it is considered that, over a number of years, monies 
 expended on maintenance works within each Area Committee will even out 
 (proportionate to the length, nature and condition of highways). 

7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.8.1 The development and implementation of schemes included in this report support 
 priorities within the Shipley Area Committee Ward Plans 2015-16. 

8.0  NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

8.1 None. 

9.0 OPTIONS 

9.1 That the Shipley Area Committee adopts the recommended schemes detailed in 
 Appendices 2 and 3. 

9.2 That the Shipley Area Committee adopts the recommended schemes detailed in 
 Appendices 2 and 3, with any substitutions (to a similar value) from the reserve list 
 in Appendix 2. 

Page 54



Report to the Shipley Area Committee 

      5 

 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

10.1 That the Shipley Area Committee approves the proposed programme of works for 
2016/17 as shown in Appendices 2 and 3. 

11.0 APPENDICES 

11.1 Appendix 1 – Highway Maintenance Capital Programme 2015/16 A, B, C Classified 
 and Unclassified Roads Completed – Shipley Constituency. 

 
11.2 Appendix 2 – Highway Maintenance Proposed Capital Programme for Non–PRN 

 (Non-classified roads) 2016/17 – Shipley Constituency. 
 
11.3 Appendix 3 – Proposed Programme for Surface Dressing 2016/17 – Shipley 

 Constituency. 
 
12.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

12.1 None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 

      6 

Appendix 1 - Highway Maintenance Capital Programme 2015/16 
A, B, C Classified and Unclassified Roads Completed – Shipley Constituency 
  

Highway Maintenance Capital Programme 2015/2016 - A, B, C Classified and Unclassified Roads Completed, Shipley 

Road Name Ward From To 
Length 

(m) 
Budget 

Estimate 
Cost 

Road Resurfacing (A, B and C)         

       

Main Street, Wilsden (C511) 03 – Bingley Rural Tweedy Street Florence Avenue 600 £75,000 £39,000 

Lane Side, Wilsden (B6144) 03 – Bingley Rural Old Allen Road Lingbob Pub 300 £35,000 £88,000 

Carr Lane, Windhill (C513) 28 – Windhill and Wrose Leeds Road (A657) Gaisby Lane 800 £120,000 £90,000 

   Total (A, B and C) 1700m £230,000 £217,000 

Resurfacing (Unclassified)       

       

West Avenue, Baildon 01 - Baildon Full Length  90 £18,000 £9,000 

St James Road, Baildon 01 - Baildon Full Length   190 £25,000 £18,000 

West Lane, Baildon 01 - Baildon Ferncliffe Drive Highmoor Walk (Sections) 560 £72,000 £49,000 

Valley View, Harden 03 – Bingley Rural Full Length  130 £15,000 £7,000 

Old Road/ Station Road/Knowles 
Street/ Albion Street, Denholme 

03 – Bingley Rural Main Road (A629) 50m 140 £20,000 £17,000 

Albert Road, Saltaire 22 - Shipley Full Length   340 £55,000 £25,000 

Main Street, Menston 26 - Wharfedale East Parade Croft Park 210 £25,000 £18,000 

Main Street, Burley in Wharfedale 26 - Wharfedale Peel Place Low Croft (Sections) 280 £40,000 £51,000 

   Total (Unclassified) 1940m £270,000 £194,000 

   Total (Shipley Area) 3640m £500,000 £411,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



 

      7 

Appendix 2 - Highway Maintenance Proposed Capital Programme for 
Non-PRN (Non-classified roads) 2016/17 – Shipley Constituency 
 

Road Name Ward From To 
Length 

(m) 
Budget 

Cliffe Lane, Baildon 01 – Baildon Baildon Road Old School Way 160 £16,000 

Dorchester Crescent, Baildon 01 – Baildon Full Length  160 £12,000 

Hilton Crescent, Baildon 01 – Baildon Full Length (Micro) 50 £2,000 

Kingsley Crescent, Baildon 01 – Baildon Full Length (Micro) 35 £2,000 

Maple Grove, Baildon 01 – Baildon Full Length (Micro) 60 £6,000 

Poplar Grove, Baildon 01 – Baildon Full Length (Micro) 55 £6,000 

Valley View, Baildon 01 – Baildon Full Length  350 £55,000 

Carr Lane, Micklethwaite 02 – Bingley 100m Section Carr House Farm 100 £11,000 

Micklethwaite Lane, Crossflatts 02 – Bingley Leeds + Liverpool Canal Sty Lane 180 £12,000 

Crooke Lane, Wilsden 03 – Bingley Rural Lane Side Farndale Road (Micro) 100 £6,000 

Foster Park Road, Denholme 03 – Bingley Rural Sections (Micro) 150 £6,000 

Lee Close, Wilsden 03 – Bingley Rural  Full Length (Micro) 110 £6,000 

Tweedy Street, Wilsden 03 – Bingley Rural Full Length (Micro) 170 £8,000 

Park Street, Saltaire 03 – Bingley Rural Full Length (Micro) 200 £8,000 

Buckle Lane, Menston 26 – Wharfedale Traffic Lights Bridge 230 £25,000 

Douglas Crescent, Shipley 28 – Windhill & Wrose Full Length  (Micro) 70 £4,000 

Gaisby Lane, Shipley 28 – Windhill & Wrose Thornhill Avenue Festival Avenue 300 £42,000 

St Lawrence Close, Bolton Woods 28 – Windhill & Wrose Full Length (Micro) 100 £4,000 

Oakdale Grove, Wrose 28 – Windhill & Wrose Wrose Road New Housing Development 90 £9,000 

   Total 2670m £240,000 

Reserve List      

Myrtle Grove, Bingley 02 – Bingley  Full Length  200 £20,000 

Station Road, Burley 26 – Wharfedale  Roundabout Grange Road 160 £20,000 

Dockfield Road, Shipley 22 – Shipley  Eastern end Aireside Road 200 £37,500 

Hazebrouk Drive, Baildon (Re-Kerb Required) 01 – Baildon  Full Length  80 £18,000 

Hollin Lane, Shipley 28 – Windhill & Wrose Full Length  300 £30,000 

Farnley Road, Menston 26 – Wharfedale  Full Length  275 £30,000 

Wood Street, Baildon 01 – Baildon  Full Length  55 £25,000 

Baker Street, Saltaire 22 – Shipley   Full Length  130 £16,000 

Hazel Heads, Baildon 01 – Baildon  Full Length  300 £35,000 

Gaisby Lane, Shipley 28 – Windhill & Wrose Festival Avenue Livingstone Road 130 £16,000 

Ryecroft Road, Ryecroft 22 – Shipley  Quarry Hainworth Shaw Lane 800 £140,000 

Grange Road, Burley 26 – Wharfedale  Station Road The Lawn 300 £34,000 

Hill Crescent, Menston 26 – Wharfedale  Section of re-kerbing  250 £30,000 

Heaton Drive, Baildon (Phase 2 Re-Kerb Required) 01 – Baildon    340 £40,000 

P
age 57



 

      8 

Haslam Grove, Wrose 28 – Windhill & Wrose Full Length (Micro) 230 £8,000 

George Street, Baildon 01 – Baildon  Full Length  40 £10,000 

Roseberry Avenue, Shipley (Elevated Footway 
Section) 

28 – Windhill & Wrose  (Micro) 280 £10,000 

Lilac Grove, Shipley 28 – Windhill & Wrose Full length plus joints  265 £28,000 

Springhurst Road, Shipley 22 – Shipley  Full Length  160 £20,000 

Temple Rhydding Drive, Baildon 01 – Baildon  Full Length  475 £55,000 

Denby Drive, Baildon 01 – Baildon  Full Length plus joints  375 £45,000 

West Lane, Baildon 01 – Baildon  Highmoor Walk Lucy Hall Drive 550 £75,000 

Gaisby Lane, Shipley 28 – Windhill & Wrose Livingstone Road Canal Road 280 £38,000 

Brown Lee Lane, Harecroft 03 – Bingley Rural Full adopted length  75 £10,000 

Victoria Street, Shipley 22 – Shipley  Full Length  Inc j/o Saltaire Road 290 £40,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 58



 

      9 

Appendix 3 – Proposed Programme for Surface Dressing 2016/17 – Shipley Constituency 

Road Name Ward 
Length 

(m) 
From To  

Cliffe Lane West, Baildon 01 – Baildon 230 Green Road Northern j/o The Crescent 

Esholt Lane, Esholt 01 – Baildon 500 From j/o A6038 Otley Road Golf Driving Range 

Green Road, Baildon 01 – Baildon 430 Cricketers Arms Cliffe Avenue 

John Street, Baildon 01 – Baildon 80 Full Length  

Otley Road, Shipley (A6038) 01 – Baildon/22 – Shipley 815 J/o a657 Commercial Street J/o Green Lane 

Station Road, Esholt 01 – Baildon 160 30m below the viaduct J/o Green Lane 

Back Mitchell Terrace, Bingley 02 – Bingley  120 Full Length  

Back Oak Avenue, Bingley 02 – Bingley  120 Full Length  

Back Unity Street North, Bingley 02 – Bingley  70 Full Length  

Back Unity Street South, Bingley 02 – Bingley  100 Full Length  

Park Road, Bingley 02 – Bingley  90 Extended lay-by section Between house nos 135 & 155 

Brunswick Street, Bingley 03 – Bingley Rural 130 Full Length  

Crack Lane, Wilsden 03 – Bingley Rural 340 J/o Shay Lane J/o Lingfield Road 

Chadwell Springs, Cottingley 03 – Bingley Rural 60 Full Length  

Gatesway, Harden 03 – Bingley Rural 120 Full Length  

Keighley Road, Cullingworth 03 – Bingley Rural 105 15m North of j/o Weavers Lane  30mph Sign 

Langlands Road, Cottingley 03 – Bingley Rural 310 Full Length  

Lingfield Road, Wilsden 03 – Bingley Rural 210 Lighting Column 9  J/o Main Street 

Long Causeway, Denholme 03 – Bingley Rural 290 185m east of j/o Trough Lane Entrance to Thornton Moor Reservoir 

Main Street, WIlsden 03 – Bingley Rural 480 J/o Royd Street 20m South of j/o Chapel Row 

Millbeck Drive, Harden 03 – Bingley Rural 225 Full Length  

Peel Street, Bingley 03 – Bingley Rural 120 Full Length  

Spring Farm Mews, Wilsden 03 – Bingley Rural 25 J/o Main Street Sett paved speed cushion 

Spring Park Road/Manor House Road, Wilsden 03 – Bingley Rural 370 Full Length  

Whalley Lane, Denholme 03 – Bingley Rural 320 Old Quarry Entrance A Point 320m East of the entrance 

Adelaide Rise, Baildon 22 – Shipley  50 Full Length  

Hill Foot, Nab Wood 22 – Shipley 180 Full Length  

Nab Wood Mount, Nab Wood 22 – Shipley 100 Full Length  

Nab Wood Road, Nab Wood 22 – Shipley 170 House No. 27 J/o Bankfield Road 

Nab Wood Terrace, Nab Wood 22 – Shipley 180 Full Length  

Thompson Green, Baildon 22 – Shipley 100 Full Length  

Corn Mill, Menston 26 – Wharfedale  140 Full Length  

Wentworth Close, Menston 26 – Wharfedale  140 Full Length  

Briggate (B6149)/Crag Road, Shipley 28 – Windhill & Wrose 610 J/o Valley Road 

J/o Carr Lane ( Including Junction 
areas of Owlet Road and unclassified 
section of Crag Road) 

P
age 59



 

      10 

Brookfield Avenue, Windhill 28 – Windhill & Wrose 115 Full Length  

Brookfield Road, Windhill 28 – Windhill & Wrose 80 Full Length  

Thackley Old Road, Windhill 28 – Windhill & Wrose 380 20m Wet of j/o Busy Lane House No. 10 

Total  8,065m   

 

P
age 60


	Agenda
	1 PETITION REQUESTING ‘20MPH ZONE’ ON WELL HEADS AND A644 BRIGHOUSE ROAD ADJACENT TO KEELHAM PRIMARY SCHOOL, WELL HEADS (DOCUMENT "AH")
	2 26 OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER FOR PARKING RESTRICTIONS WITHIN BAILDON VILLAGE AND ITS SURROUNDING AREAS (DOCUMENT "AI")
	3 OBJECTIONS TO ADVERTISED 20MPH ZONE (COMPRISING TEN ROUND TOP ROAD HUMPS) ON THE EXISTING 20MPH LENGTH OF MOOR ROAD, BURLEY WOODHEAD (DOCUMENT "AJ")
	4 PETITION REQUESTING REMOVAL OF EXISTING TWO HOUR SHORT-STAY ON-STREET PARKING ON CEDAR STREET, CROSSFLATTS (DOCUMENT "AK")
	5 OBJECTION TO PROPOSED SPEED LIMIT ORDER TO INTRODUCE A 20MPH ZONE ON A SECTION OF SUN LANE, BURLEY IN WHARFEDALE (DOCUMENT "AL")
	6 HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE NON-CLASSIFIED ROADS AND SURFACE DRESSING ALLOCATION FOR SHIPLEY CONSTITUENCY- 2016/17 (DOCUMENT "AM")

